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CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . Good morning, Members. Budget and Finance Committee will come
to order. And it's April 10 th and just after 9 o'clock in the morning. And before we begin, I'd
like everyone to turn off their noise-making devices and start by welcoming Committee
Vice-Chair, Riki Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. Council Chair, Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And our Council Vice-Chair has been excused for this morning.
And, next, we have Members Stacy Crivello -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: --Elle Cochran -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: --Don Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: --and Michael Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: And, this morning, we have Committee Secretary, Camille Sakamoto. And
Legislative Analyst, Scott Kaneshina, has already started his trek to Molokai to set up for this
evening's hearing. And we have Michele Yoshimura and Josiah Nishita here with us in the
Chambers. And Jeffrey Ueoka, Herman Andaya, and Sandy Baz with us as well, so welcome to
you, gentlemen.
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ITEM BF-1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (CC 13-100 and CC 13-124)

CHAIR WHITE: And, this morning, we'll.. .do we have any testifiers signed up?
MS. SAKAMOTO: No, Mr. Chair
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so far, we have no testifiers signed up in the Chambers, and I don't see anyone
who is likely to testify. So we'll go on to Hana to check with Dawn to see if we have any
testifiers there. Dawn?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono in Hana, and I have no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Dawn. You're coming in loud and clear this morning. Much better than
last week.
MS. LONO: Oh, good. I'm glad to hear that.
CHAIR WHITE: And, next, we'll go to Denise on Lanai.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez at the Lanai Office, and we have
no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And, next, we'll go to Ella on Molokai.
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai, and there is no one here waiting to
testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. And seeing that there's no testifiers at any location, without
objection, the Chair will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And, Members, I'd like to just make a note that we have a 12:45 flight to
Lanai.. .not Lanai, Molokai. And so we will be wrapping things up here no later than 11:30 in
the Chambers, so please ask good questions. And, to the Administration, please provide crisp
responses.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ooh boy, some pressure everybody get.

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
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CHAIR WHITE: And with that, if there are no questions, we'll just start off with the Mayor's Proposed
2014 Budget starting with the Department Summary.. .or, actually, you can start on whichever
page you would like, Mr. Andaya.
MR. ANDAYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Chair, Council members, good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning.
MR. ANDAYA: Thank you for this opportunity to present to you the Proposed Budget for the Office of
the Mayor. The Office is comprised of three programs: Administration; Office of Economic
Development, OED; and Community Development Block Grant, CDBG. I'll be discussing the
Administration's portion of our budget which includes the Budget and Communications Office.
OED Director, Teena Rasmussen, will be going over the budget proposal for the Office of
Economic Development; and Anthony Arakaki, CDBG Program Coordinator, will be presenting
the budget proposal for CDBG. At this time, I would like to go through our office's budget
proposal page by page. First of all, very quickly, I would like to give you a summary of our
Department in general. So if you could look at Page 381 at this time. The primary mission of
our office is to serve as the community's immediate liaison to County government. Many
members of our community demand the attention of the Mayor on issues and concerns ranging
from potholes to property taxes. With the Mayor's limited time, addressing these issues
promptly requires the assistance of our executive assistants and staff. I know that each of you
can attest to the tremendous value that our executive assistants have in addressing the needs of
our constituents, and our work would be tremendously hampered without their assistance. Many
times, our office also receives inquiries and complaints from constituents through their Council
members. And our office often serves as liaison between the Council members and the
departments in addressing their constituents' respective issues. Listed on that page, on 381, is
the list of Countywide outcomes. The first is particularly pertinent to our office: an efficient,
effective and responsive government. Our office takes great pride or great care in ensuring that
public inquiries are addressed expeditiously. If we could move one to Page 382, displayed here
is our organizational chart, and there you'll see our programs listed. We can move on to
Page 383. The top graph displays our budget summary by fund; bottom graph displays our
departmental expenditures by type. I'm just gonna go through this quickly, Council members.
Beg your indulgence. Page 384, the table displayed here is a summary of expenditures. We'll
discuss this more in detail when we present the proposed budget for each of the programs in our
office. I want to point out, in particular, one of our strategic goals which is, accessibility of an
open office. Since the Mayor's symbolic gesture of leaving the doors open to the ninth floor and
the public becoming more and more aware that the Office of the Mayor is accessible, we have
seen over the years a significant increase in the number of calls and visits by members of the
public. This translates to a larger workload for our staff. An open office also means a
transparent one. As such, we have discussed much of our efforts in disseminating information to
the general public through a number of modes of communication. And for instance--I'll just go
through this very briefly--social media, we now have accounts with Facebook, Twitter, Pinterest,
Instagram, YouTube. Our County's Facebook page, alone, has over 3,000 likes. And the
Mayor's page has over 5,000 likes. Please note that the County began using social media when
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we first entered office. Print media, we have articles in the paper such as, Ask the Mayor. It's
sort of a frequently asked questions type of session where we field many of the questions that we
get from the public. We also have the Mayor's Viewpoint. The High Street Journal, that's
produced in house in our office. It's the County's own newsletter. We have a readership of
about 14,000. Just by comparison, Maui News has a readership of about 20,000. So we are very
proud of this newsletter. It does reach out to a large portion of our community We also print
out informational posters at DMV, on buses, and other public-frequented facilities. And, again,
this is another avenue, another way, in which we can convey and disseminate information to the
public. With respect to TV, TV interviews with network stations, you have to credit
Rod Antone, our Communications Director. It's good to have a former TV reporter as our
Communications Director. And through his contacts, the Mayor has had several TV interviews,
more than any other neighbor island mayor. And I know whenever there's a Council member
with the Mayor--I know that Chair Baisa has been with the Mayor on TV as well--and so this
gives.. .this really brings a lot of exposure for our County. Mayor also has a regular interview on
mauinow.com. Akaku, the Mayor has a monthly show entitled, Your County with Mayor Alan
Arakawa. Akaku also shows many of our in-house produced videos and PSAs. We also have
interviews planned on The Today Show, CBS This Morning, and CNN. So as you can see, just on
TV alone, we are.. .Maui County's getting a lot of exposure. On the radio, the Mayor has regular
morning radio shows, twice a week, where he discusses current issues. And then, also, we have
our website and the Mayor's blog. So, as you can see, we are spending a lot of time
disseminating information through all these different avenues of communication. If we can now
skip over to Page 386. And I'd like to, at this time, go over the Administration Program. And,
for the sake of time, I know this was discussed briefly earlier, so I'll just skip over to Page 387.
387, we'll be.. .on Page 387, as you can see, we'll be asking for a 14.8 percent increase in our
office budget. A large portion of which will be for salaries. When we first entered office, we
self-imposed a salary cut of over $250,000. We made such cuts because we were uncertain
about the economic outlook of this County. We anticipate, however, as a result of labor
negotiations, that our civil-service counterparts will be receiving raises. So that's the reason why
we are, at this point, asking for this increase as well as pay increases for the Mayor, as you know,
that he just received. On Page 390, if I can go over our Goals and Objectives? And very
quickly, Goal No. 1, serve as liaison between community and government. And, again, as I
mentioned earlier, our office often serves as the liaison between the community and our
depailments. And so, we're the first line of defense. We're often the ones who will get the
complaint, and we follow up with the complaint. We just don't direct the constituent to the
department, 'cause it feels like we're just passing the buck. So what we do is, we deal with the
constituent and then we deal with the department and then we follow up with the constituent.
The same with Council members. When Council members come to us and ask us for assistance
regarding a particular issue, again, we will deal with the departments and make sure that such
issues are resolved. Also, another thing that I should bring up--and this is something that we're
seeing more and more now--is in this Legislative session, we found that there were certain bills
that would adversely impact our County. As you know, the State has been trying to, I guess,
keep more of the monies within the State instead of giving it to the counties. And so this is an
excellent example of collaboration between the County Council and the Administration by
jointly lobbying at the State Legislature to oppose and support certain bills. For instance, there
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was a bill that would've taken away our share of the Franchise Tax. Our joint efforts, which
culminated with the testimony of Mayor Alan Arakawa and Council Chair Gladys Baisa, resulted
in the bill dying. And insiders at the Capital have all said that it was because of their testimonies
that the bill died. So that shows how effective when you have both the Mayor and the Council
Chair there at the Legislature lobbying as well as Members of the County Council. We are
heard; it is effective. And this is where, also, I know that Danny Mateo has served as the
Council's lobbyist as well as we have on our staff one of our executive assistants, Jock
Yamaguchi, who's been, both of them tirelessly, lobbying the Legislature, writing testimonies
between them. I know Jock has written over 50 pieces of testimony, he has written.. .has briefed
Chair Baisa. I know that Cotmcilmember Riki Hokama has been also going to the Legislature,
and I know that his testimonies have been very effective in getting our bills through or getting
bills to die. So I just wanted to point that out that the collaboration, our joint collaboration
between Council and the Mayor's Office, has been truly effective; and I hope that we can
continue to do just that. I can move on. And Goal No. 2, efficient gathering and delivery of
information. Again, I've talked about this earlier. The number of subscribers to our social
media has grown tremendously. In fact, one of the goals we have by the end of this fiscal year is
to double the amount of social media users in Facebook and whatnot. Also, we continue to
provide press releases and other forms of communications. Goal No. 3, fostering new and
existing relations in the local, state and federal, international arena. This we've been doing quite
a bit. We've been working with our State, especially through our Lieutenant Governor, Shan
Tsutsui. He has been very good to us, actually, and has assisted us on many occasions. Also, on
the federal level and in the international arena as well, we've been working closely with the
Mayor of Goyang City, and that relationship is blooming. Let's see. Goal No. 4--I'm being told
by the Budget Director to hurry up, so I'll quickly go through this--streamline resources. We're
working on trying to digitize documents. We're trying so much not to use paper, and so we're
PDF'ing documents, letters and whatnot and transmitting it to staff. And then, finally, promote
health and wellness in the community And so, this, you see a lot of activities happening. We
still have walking on Wednesdays and, you know, things of that nature. So that concludes my
presentation. I'm now open for questions.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions? This whole front section is up for grabs. You can talk
about goals, you can talk about financials, you can talk about whatever, whatever you wish. And
the Chair would like to recognize that Don Guzman has joined us. Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good morning, Chair. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'll start, Chairman.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Andaya, thank you very much for your summary opening for us this
morning. You know, looking at 384 which is your summary of your expenditures that you're
proposing, maybe you can lead us to the more specific areas so that we can understand those big
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changes that stand out dramatically for us? So, you know, why don't we start in... for Salaries
and Wages, is that basically 'cause of what Salary Commission did -MR. BAZ: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --and Collective Bargaining did?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair? Member Hokama, do you mind if we go to... since Page 384 is the whole
Department which includes Office of Economic Development, do you wanna go over the whole
thing or just the Mayor's Office Administration Program?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'll leave that up to our Chairman to give us direction.
CHAIR WHITE: I think it's easier if we move to the Administration Program, because each of the
items that makes up the Department are more specifically addressed and identified on Page 387.
And then there's explanations on 389.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We can do that, Chair. Yeah, so why don't we just work on your
operational costs?
MR. BAZ: Member Hokama, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: So just to go back to Page 389, about $25,000 of the increases for the Continuation Budget
Changes, is related to the Mayor's salary pursuant to Salary Commission increase that was
updated and for the Executive Secretary like we did for the rest of the departments. There is also
couple of positions that were added in the Administration Program, and those total $112,332.
And then there is the $85,000 is set aside for union negotiation increases. We generally follow
HGEA's increases for appointed staff. And then the $50,000, Mr. Chair, is related to my office
request for additional support when it comes to some of the future requirements that we're
looking at: providing a better management of our capital, funding expenditure management, as
well as future goals that we... forecasting and all that, and measuring, reporting kind of stuff.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So 80 percent is more just payroll?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know 388, Mr. Andaya, that last position. You plan to fill, but it's not
filled; and that's why it's presented in that manner, that last Admin. II position?
MR. ANDAYA: Right now, Council member, all of the positions are filled as it is, so I'm not certain
what that is at the very end. But...
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, and I have to check with my office why there's not a OM number, because
there.. .yeah, from my understanding, too, all the positions are filled.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So there's 29 employees in the admin. program, if I added right?
MR. BAZ: Possibly. We didn't add it up, either. I can add it up here if you want?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no. I mean if you don't count the Mayor, it's 29 assistants and
specialists. Okay. I'm good, thank you, Mr. Baz, Mr. Andaya.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members? I guess we need to...Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Just to back up a little bit. Budget Director, you mentioned that
the 85,000 was probably for negotiated raises?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, similar to the Office of Council Services, we would set aside a certain
amount for future increases should they be negotiated. And then, you know, Mayor then would
create an Executive Order for the appointed employees.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And these employees belong to what units?
MR. BAZ: They don't belong, they're exempt.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: They're exempt?
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, so just to stay on that subject for a minute, the 85,900, looks like...because
you've already taken care of the Mayor's increase and increase to the Executive Secretary, it
looks to me that the 85,000 number is about 5.7 percent of the remaining total. Would that be
accurate?
MR. BAZ: Possibly. The instructions were for 5 percent, but there might be a few dollars here or there.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Yeah, the base without the Mayor, the base would drop from the 16.. .not sure
that my...anyway, I came up with 1.4 million, little over 1.4 million, as the base. And then the
other question I had, on Page 11-5 of the Details, OM-0064, was that transferred to OED?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair. That's for the Environmental Coordinator.
CHAIR WHITE: And did that get transferred with funds or without?
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MR. BAZ: Without.
CHAIR WHITE: And why would it get -MR. BAZ: So as you can see in the...
CHAIR WHITE: --transferred without funds?
MR. BAZ: Excuse me.. .huh?
CHAIR WHITE: What's the purpose for transferring it without funds?
MR. BAZ: Well we transferred the position so that the individual could assist the Office of Economic
Development in managing their environmental protection and the role that the Office of
Economic Development has in that area. Your question was, how come we...
CHAIR WHITE: Why would you transfer the position without transferring the fund?
MR. BAZ: Oh, 'cause there was money available within the Office of Economic Development.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And if I go through the numbers of what was appropriated last year, was
2.5 million, and I add up all the... and I don't know that whether these are actual expenditures
'cause they're.. .part of them may be annualized numbers that...for positions that may not have
been filled the full year. But, by totaling all it up, I come with 2.637 million, which is about
$132,000 over what was appropriated. So could you explain to us where.. .1 know you guys can
do what you wish with the E/Ps and you're not bound by any number of E/Ps and you can switch
numbers around within the budget, but I'm just interested in finding out where those monies
came from.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, they...
CHAIR WHITE: I don't need an answer to that now. You can -MR. BAZ: Okay, alright.
CHAIR WHITE: --do some checking.
MR. BAZ: The general answer would've been, they came from savings within some other area which
you already just described, so I...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. But if we could.. .well, we'll send you a note requesting detail on that.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just something for clarification, please? The salary adjustment will be
given and then the additional 85 for those Collective Bargaining, it's in addition to after the
salary adjustments are made? So potentially you're gonna bump it twice?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair, the Salary Commission only affected the Mayor, himself, in the Mayor's
Office. And so the additional funds are for.. it would just be once should the unions negotiate
and all that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the 85 is just the Mayor?
MR. BAZ: No, the 25 is just the Mayor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So the 85 is.. .also goes to those that getting the salary adjustments,
potentially?
MR. BAZ: Oh, that would be covering the cost of the salary adjustments. So there wouldn't be an
additional coverage.. .there wouldn't be additional money for the salary adjustments, that is the
salary adjustments. Yeah, we're just showing it in the Mayor's Office program instead of in the
Countywide Costs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Department, for being here, Mr. Andaya.
And so just kinda getting a feel from where Mr. Hokama's questioning is going. I'm going back
to Page 388. And I'm just curious, in historical numbers, if you folks know what amount of
personnel, normally, has been in the administrations, the different administrations in the past?
Would you have a clue about that in reference to what the numbers are here today?
MR. ANDAYA: Mr. Chair 9
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh?
MR. ANDAYA: I'm not sure exactly. I think we're less or about the same. I know for sure we're
spending less monies than we have, I mean, as compared to previous administration, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And in your...
CHAIR WHITE: Compared to.. .I'm sorry. Compared to previous administrations?
MR. ANDAYA: Compared to the previous administration.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. ANDAYA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And in your opening statements, you know, being more accessible,
doors open, being on social media, and all that--which is awesome--has increased your workload.
So, thereby, does that have something to do with adding these administrative assistant positions
in the 112,000 increase, is that sorta to address that?
MR. ANDAYA: Partly that. But also, as I mentioned earlier, because of our open-door policy, we've
had more calls, more inquiries from the public.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. ANDAYA: You know, the word is getting around now that, you know, you can call the Mayor's
Office and they can help you. You know, and so because of that, we're seeing that our executive
assistants now are being overtaxed. And so that's the reason why we're looking at trying to help
them out.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: As in added positions, though; not like more pay, increase salaries,
it's just more positions to address the influx of more -MR. ANDAYA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --work from the public?
MR. ANDAYA: And, at some point, more pay as well, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, great.
MR. ANDAYA: Well...
MR. BAZ: Yeah. And, Mr. Chair, I can confirm that all of the positions are filled. At the time of the
budget transmittal, we didn't have the position number of that last person, but they started in
January.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Ms. Cochran, just to put some numbers to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh?
CHAIR WHITE: At the end of the Apana Administration, it appears that the--that would be 2004... or
2003 Fiscal Year--there were 15 individuals working in the Mayor's Office at an expense of
$693,000. At the end of the first Arakawa Administration, there were 18--and there were 18
throughout his first administration--and the final cost was $947,000. And by the end of the
Tavares Administration, there were 28 at a cost of 1,477,000. And so what Mr. Andaya related
is correct with respect to the two previous budgets that we received. But with this submittal,
they finally broken through the amount spent by the previous administration. If you go back and
look at 2004, if you go back 10 years, the number of people--and they're not held to the number
of people, the salaries are budgeted, but the E/Ps are not--but the count has increased by 11 or a
61 percent increase. The salaries and wages have increased, with this proposal, $920,000 or
114 percent. And that's just in the Mayor's Office. And, overall, they've increased position
count by 18 or 72 percent and salaries and wages by almost 1 3 million and a total of
110 percent. So the challenge that we face, going through this budget proposal is, we all want to
make sure that each department has the right amount of staffing and the right amount of
resources to work. But, as I've shared with you before, the increase in the private sector during
that same 10-year period is.. .the job-count increase is 3 percent. The wages increased by
36 percent. So the public that we're asking to support the County government with their taxes is
not growing anywhere near at the rate that we've seen in the County. And the Mayor's Office
growth in both job count and salaries and wages exceeds the average for the County overall by a
fair margin.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Thank you. Thank you for all that information, Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: My Sunday morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHI E: Other questions? Boy, we're gonna have to start you guys either earlier or later on
Monday mornings. Okay, let's just see if I have any other questions. Okay. Let's proceed with
the Budget Director's section.
MR. BAZ: Sure, Mr. Chair. If you wanna go through Budget Office Goals and Measures on Page 392?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Goal No. 1 is to provide the highest quality budget management for the County to protect its
fiscal integrity. And so we, you know, develop a financially sound budget by improving the use
and control of operating and capital budget resources. And we've gone through this year...the
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past couple years in making sure that, you know, we budget prudently, making sure that we're
conservative in our forecasting of revenues. And our bond rating, you know, we went this year
and issued bonds, and our bond rating was AA+ or higher. We're continuing to search for that
AAA, Mr. Chair, but not quite there yet. We did receive the Government Finance Officers
Association Budget Presentation Award for a distinguished budget. And our, as you can see
from the actual revenue vary from the budget, it's less than or equal to 5 percent we're projecting
for this upcoming year...this year and then the upcoming year. We continue on with, you know,
Budget Office is there to make sure that we can, the County itself, can provide delivery of
services and accountability to the community through performance measures and something that
we can present to you. We did, this year, change the Budget Implementation Report. It had been
a part of the Finance Director's Quarterly Report prior, but this year we split it out for the Fiscal
Year 2013. And so you've been receiving that on a quarterly basis strictly related to the
requirements that are in the County Code which are for the Budget Office to present the
Quarterly Report on performance measures and Vacancy Report. And we're continuing to, you
know, move towards this result-based budgeting that we've been discussing for a couple years.
It's not something that's gonna happen overnight, as we mentioned. But being able to align the
budget to the actual outcomes of departments is something that we strive for in the Budget Office
to make sure that we're accountable and do things in the most prudent manner that we can. Goal
No. 2 is provide useful and accurate, timely information to internal customers for
decision-making relative to planning, implementation, assessment of the County's operation and
capital budget. We try very hard to make sure that we respond to departments' or Council
members' inquiries in a timely manner, making sure that we produce the budget on time, making
sure that we have the proper resources to be able to answer people's questions. And that is kind
of related to the ability to... Goal No. 3, enhance community access to reliable budget
information. We're very happy to make sure that, you know, we redid our website this year to
provide more clear access to the County's budgets, and we have budgets from Fiscal Year 2007
all the way up to the current, Proposed Budget online where the community would be able
access. We have more details in the budget for general public to be able to understand what the
County's spending on certain character level items as well as for your information as Council
members. We continue.. .we had one turnover in my office. My staff is myself and four
individuals. So with Budget Office out of the Mayor's Administrative Program is a total of five
people. And we had one turnover this year, and I'm very happy that we attracted a highly
qualified and energetic individual to join my office. And so I do.. .I'm very proud of my staff.
They work very hard and they're very efficient at what they do. We were able to reduce the
amount of extra time that we spent on producing the budget for the third year in a row when we
produced this budget this year, so very happy about that. And, Mr. Chair, that's our Budget
Office.
CHAIR WHITE: Well before I open it up for questions, I think accolades would do to you and your
staff. Because, you know, for us, it's very easy to sit here and read and, you know, point things
out. And, yet, the real work to put this together is a huge, huge task. And you need to depend on
each of the departments to get you the information on a timely and accurate and understandable
basis. And I know that's not always easy. So I just wanna say that, you know, on behalf of the
Members and the Staff that we really appreciate the incredible amount of work that goes into
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this. And while, you know, while we find stuff, we're not the ones that have to put it all
together. And so we take our hat off to you.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Appreciate it. Members, questions? Seeing none, we'll move on to...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I was curious when the Director was planning to.. .1 like that goal on
Page 394, top of the page, No. 2. And you're gonna complete the forecasting model, Mr. Baz.
Can you give us some comment, please?
MR. BAZ: Sure. We're trying very hard. We actually tried to get something together for this budget,
but we're having some challenges. One of the.. .well, a few challenges. But one of the
challenges, as we discussed in the Policy Committee when we were.. .oh, no, was the Budget
Committee, excuse me, we were discussing the changes to 3.04 -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: --was revenue forecasting. That's, you know, I talked to my peers and I look.. .do some
research, you know, that's the most challenging thing there is to do is to forecast revenues. We
can guess, but, you know, as the Chair mentioned, our guess is wrong five minutes after we've
done it, right? So it's just something that we're working on. The expenditures are a little bit
more easy to forecast, because we have control over the departments and their goals and, you
know, what it is they're planning on doing, but it's just a matter of processing that. You know,
we have a six-year CIP plan, but if you look at the details of the six-year...and, Mr. Hokama,
you've been doing this for many years, you know that that six-year plan, by the time the third or
fourth year comes around, the six-year plan's fairly different than the original six-year plan. And
it's just kinda the nature of change, the nature of what we do. I think if we had more staff and
more time to be able to work with the departments and really decipher what it is that they're
planning on doing and then we can apply cost items and factors to that, then we'd have a better
outcome to that. The other challenge is, with the vendor...we have a forecasting model which is
basically a glorified Excel spreadsheet, and that is okay. It's challenging because we can't put in
the information directly. We have to extract the information out of IFAS, export it to a Excel
file, send it off to the Mainland, they process it within, you know, sometimes a few weeks, and
then send it back to us. Well I had sent him the Proposed Budget so that I could hopefully
provide you guys with some information on the forecasting, you know, for the Fiscal Year '14
Budget, but that didn't happen in time for us to work on that. So that's part of my request for
additional support. From the -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
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MR. BAZ: --financial perspective, is be able to either get different resources or look at better ones. I
talked with MIS or ITS about possibly looking at IFAS itself and seeing... 'cause there's a
budgeting model on IFAS, but it's inadequate. It does only annual budgets, it doesn't do
forecasting. It does.. .the forecasting is basically you hand entering in the information in there.
So...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What we read is that this year it's been completed, so is that something we
get to look at or you've already submitted what for some.. .that we can review with you?
MR. BAZ: After budget's done, I should be able to give them the Final Budget, get that back. And I
would hope that it would be before the end of June 30th• We're planning for that. But, again, the
forecasting itself, revenues, is gonna be very difficult. We can apply some basic percentages.
But one of the things that a lot of our peers, when they're producing a forecast model, is actually
something that comes...the revenues is something that comes from either a third party like the
State uses the Council on revenues-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: --or the Council itself, you know, the legislative body itself. And that's something I wanted
to discuss maybe after budget with you guys and how we can develop that maybe jointly,
working on, you know, what it is that you, as the legislative body, if you set the parameters for,
you know, what we're looking at for revenue, then I can come up with the numbers.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. I think that's good comments, Mr. Baz. I would agree, we have
more control on the expenditures side, and so we can lock in our numbers tighter, you know.
And we control how we can spend, too, so of course those things.. .1 would agree with you on the
revenues. I think we might need to sit down and see how we wanna approach it, and see if we
may be able to assist you in how we watma approach our short-term portfolio and how that
generates additional revenue for the -MR. BAZ: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --County. Of course, one of the things is the next component of this budget
is what OED does to assist in the revenue picture, also. But I would agree with you and the
Chairman already that we need people who understand what is going on outside of our control
that impacts revenue, okay, and just like the Feds. You know, I'm very concerned. We are
seriously gonna have to consider possible loss on our tax-exempt bonds. But the way the market
is, if we understand it right, the margins between the taxable and tax-exempt is just points now,
it's not percentages. And, of course, you have to look at everything else that's going on, how
much the Feds prop up the economy by buying $85 billion a month of U.S. Treasury Notes. It
gives us a false sense of recovery, you know. So, for me, looking at your revenue projections
this year with some of the rates and fees proposed, you know, I gotta be honest, I'm a little bit
more concerned knowing of these other factors that's happening out of our control that I think's
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gonna impact our money. And so I'm not as optimistic at your rev projections, and that's why
I'm interested in seeing how this model, how much you've depending upon and utilized the
model to create the final numbers for this proposal.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair? For the revenue, we do have, you know, when we go through each area
of revenue, we have historical information and projections that I go look at, you know, on an
annual basis. So, for the upcoming year, it's based on, you know, historical information. Lot of
it's based on historical information as well as then, you know, some of the outside impacts that
you discussed. You know, the things that we have control over, you know, they're really up to
the Council's final decision on.. .and that's really what majority of our budget is. The grant
revenue is something that we don't have control over, and that's why, in general, it hasn't been -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: --budgeted for necessarily. I'm showing you budgets this year in that area so that you can
get an idea of what we're doing with that grant revenue. But it's not something that we can
depend on, you're very correct in that. And we shouldn't be operating like we can depend on it.
And those are our extra...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: However, I would agree. We have in the past, and I am sure we're gonna be
in the future, that the County will take smart, calculated, well-thought-out risks that makes sense
for us -MR. BAZ: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --in a particular moment of time. We've done it before, I'm sure we'll do it
again, I can tell you that the County has been very diligent and cautious in its approach, but we
have decided to do it our own when we thought it was in the best interest of the County and our
people. So I look forward to it and, you know, I think on the rev side with OED, we have
potential, 'cause I've been made aware of missed potential within the last one year for us on
Lanai. So, you know, I'm willing to, again, review smart, calculated requests. Thank you,
Mr. Baz, thank you.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions or comments on Mr. Baz's presentation? If not, we'll move
on to OED. I see Ms. Rasmussen will be joining us. Thank you, Mr. Andaya.
MR. ANDAYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: . . . (Long pause) . . . And, Ms. Rasmussen, you can proceed whenever you're ready.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. Well, as you can see, our program Goals and Objectives go on for pages
and pages, so I'm not going to go into all of them and I'll welcome any questions you have. I'd
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just like to sum up, we have worked extremely hard this year to... as we gained a much, much
deeper understanding of the grants and the grantees, we have been working extensively with
them particularly in the realm of their accountability, their performance measures, and how
sustainable they are. And the question is, can they survive without government funds and what
they're doing to try to move themselves toward that. Of course, some programs can't and they
really are more government, you know, the things that the government should be funding. But
there are some that we feel that there's a lot more opportunity for them to be self-funded or look
at other ways to enhance the revenue. So we've been working a lot with them on that. We have
really been deep into the community, we've been working extensively with businesses, trying to
understand what businesses are going through right now. We know that they've been very hard
hit with this recession, and we've worked very closely with them in trying to find things that can
help them come out of this on the other end. We are seeing improvements in our economy, but
we're not back to anywhere near where we should be for our small businesses particularly. So I
just wanna thank my staff for their incredible amount of hard work this last year. We have a
very dedicated staff, and I have a great deal of respect and gratitude for them. And doing the
work of economic development in Maui County is an extreme pleasure, and we thoroughly love
our jobs. So with that, I will be happy to answer any questions you might have.
CHAIR WHITE: Well rather than let you off the hook completely, I'll let you pick your top three goals
and objectives, and then you can go through your financial elements on Page 398.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. One of the things we realized, because as we have.. .you've entrusted us
with this grant money that we're giving out, we realize that the quality of the grants we were
getting really deserved some help. And so we decided that we really must offer grant
workshops. And we did that for the first time ever, I think, that OED has offered grant
workshops. We were able to go to virtually every island and every community. We went to
Hana, Lanai, Molokai, and we did two in Kahului. And it was a great deal of preparation on our
staff's part, but we think that it helped tremendously get a better caliber of grant, and made
them.. .made the grantees understand better what we're looking for. We're not 100 percent there
yet, because now we're looking more deeply at those performance measures and the goals and
objectives and trying to get them to tighten those things up. So we're going to have another
round of grant workshops this year. And we're going to kind of focus on those areas
particularly. So I'm very proud of the fact that we did that for the very first time in OED history.
I'm also very proud of our business advocacy. We have been, you know, one of the things is to
foster job creation within Maui County to work to sustain existing jobs. And I think that the
initiatives we've come up with...we're trying to find ways to get this grant money to help our
small businesses in our community; and not just help nonprofits, but try to get in the hands of the
business owners. So, clearly, our Maui Friday Town Parties initiative is a very aggressive and a
very ambitious program. And I don't believe that we could have found any other program that
would've touched as many businesses as we have with that program. Vendors of all kinds, food
trucks of all kinds, small businesses, just virtually...even community groups that come and
support the town parties. Virtually, we've worked with hundreds of businesses with this
initiative, and we're seeing some real benefits to the communities. We started it out as a way to
help small business, but what we're finding is it's helping to build community in these towns.
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And I can't stress enough, I was just at the.. .we were just at the Friday event in Lahaina this past
Friday, it was just an incredible mix of local people as well as visitors. It was just people having
a good time, fun, there was no rowdiness, there was no, you know, raucousness, it was just really
good family fun. The Kihei Town Party is the same. And these towns are having to talk and
they're having to learn how to communicate and they're learning how to work on their problems.
And with the Planning Department's grants that came through for small towns, that has only
helped elevate that conversation, so we're very proud of that, too. Is that enough, Chair, or do
you...
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Ms. Rasmussen, for being here.
And, yeah, I wanna commend your Department for the keep the town parties. And certainly, in
Kihei, you've been...you've had staff going to the meetings and having to deal with very strong
personalities at those meetings -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --so really appreciate your assistance there. But and it shows at the
town parties. The Kihei Fourth Friday is just fantastically attended and well organized and well
run. So thank you for your assistance there. When you talk about, in your goals, foster job
creation within Maui County and with new and expanding businesses, Objective No. 2 says,
attract new businesses, and then you have number of meetings with potential new businesses and
assist them where needed, what kind of new businesses have you been attracting here? And out
of these 12.. .or the 10 meetings estimated in 2013, how many resulted in a new business coming
to Maui?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well there's.. .we have met with quite a few interested businesses, and not all of
them have come to fruition, yet. One of them that I mentioned in a previous presentation to
Councilman Guzman's Committee was this olive industry that has developed. When we came
into office, there was 2,000 olive trees planted, today there's 10,000. They're going to be
harvesting their first olives next year. And they're going to be purchasing as a cooperative, or a
group of people that are hui'ing together, their first olive press. And they're going to be doing
it.. .you only need really one press so they'll all be using it. And they're going to create a little
cottage industry. So that.. .already those trees are, you know, creating jobs that need to be
maintained of course. We're looking for, of course, they'll need to be harvested. And then
another industry that we're... it's a very old industry, but they're doing a new twist. And that is
the Haliimaile frozen pineapple project. We assisted them with a grant to purchase some
equipment to do flash freezing of pineapple. They already have a Japanese market that is
waiting for their product. They want institutional, five-pound bags of flash-frozen pineapple.
And they are going to be opening this project probably within the next 30 days. And that is
going to create, by the way, nine new jobs, which we're very proud of.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 15, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's interesting that you mentioned the pineapple. Just to let you
know, you were on an event yesterday, on a cruise ship that we were also on. And in a tour of
the ship, the person that we were with mentioned that they get local produce from their big ports,
which they counted Hilo as one 'cause I guess they pull into the port there. And he was saying
what they got from Hilo. Nothing from Maui because of the tendering issue. But they were
just...he was bubbling over about the Tahitian pineapples and everybody in our group said, wait
a minute.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Maui Gold.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Maui Gold.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So if you can, yes, if you can get to those guys that are there -MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --it's not that difficult to ship stuff over in tenders.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But, you know, there's no better pineapple in the world. And getting
that out to all these people would help.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right, I totally agree. And that was actually fascinating to learn that, that they
board, you know, pineapple in Tahiti, so yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You know, you say... your Goal No. 2, sustain existing jobs within
Maui County by helping existing businesses, promote patronage of local businesses by creating
new initiatives; and you estimated two for last year and two new initiatives this year. Can you
explain what some of those initiatives are?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well one of them, again, because we have a new business within Haliimaile
Pineapple, the sole idea's actually sustaining existing jobs by helping existing businesses. So
that is one. We have been working with the coffee industry, also. They are.. .in fact, we have
had a foreign buyer that has come and spoken to Kaanapali Coffee Company. And they are
interested in buying bulk coffee, and even if it is just basically what is left of the crop for the
year. Because they're actually doing very well, they're selling most of their coffee. So we
actually, through our Economic Development international contractor, we set that meeting up
with the Kaanapali Coffee Company. So, you know, we're just always looking for how to bring
businesses together with the resources. When we were in Asia, we met with a company that
wants to do a Hawaii page on their home-shopping channel and--well, specifically, a Maui
page--and so they are going to be coming here within the next 60 to 90 days. They need some
pre-information that we're getting to them now about what is available here and those people
that would have the quantity of products, you know, that they will need because they'll need a
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lot. So we're always looking for those, you know, people to hook up with, with the resources
and the buyers. And just virtually every day. I mean I expect by the end of the year, we're
gonna have many more than two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, great. And it's interesting that you mentioned coffee, because
during.. .not during the tour, but prior to the tour that.. .or the site visit we had with the Council
lot on the land we're intending to.. .or that's up before us to purchase at Makila -MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --somebody came to me at the Ag Fair, I think, and said that they'd be
interested in using some of that land until we're ready to make it into a park to grow coffee and
grow some things. So are you looking into that and if not, this is the heads up to you that people
are interested in leasing the land from us until we get ready to...
MS. RASMUSSEN: We wouldn't be opposed to.. .it would have to be a case.. .would have to know
probably the timing of it -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --to see if they can get their money back out of planting a crop of coffee, because
the coffee is a very long-term crop.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MS. RASMUSSEN: So they may not be able to have enough time. But clearly, I mean really, our
estimation is that we could use about 1,000 more acres of coffee on Maui, honestly. And so if
we can find...the key is the long-term leases, that is the key; and, of course, the price of the
lease. So if we can find land like that, then we have a huge, great future in it. And, again, we are
the only state in the nation that produces coffee, that is a story in itself. Hawaii is the only state
in the United States that produces coffee. And they are just, this year, celebrating their
bicentennial, and that's.. .you'll see in the grants that we've given money out to each of the areas
to celebrate their coffee festivals that have been taking place around the County.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair. I have a couple more, but I'll yield the floor to...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: --followed by Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It says here under Goal No. 1, foster job creation within Maui
County with new and expanding businesses. And Goal No. 2, Item 2, advocate for the critical
needs of each town. Can you tell me what you see.. .how your Department would approach the
Kaunakakai town which is really the main town that we have -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --on Molokai? And clearly, and definitely, what sort of plans do
you really have to have some definite outcomes?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Needless to say, our island is in dire need of some inoculation.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I totally agree. And we.. .in order to understand Molokai's economy, it was
necessary for us to go there and spend some time. And so early last year in...I believe right after
the new budget year started, we took our team over to Molokai and several of us stayed four days
over there. We met with multiple community groups, we had our grants workshop over there,
and we attended their 4-H fair. We...Molokai has opportunity, they have opportunity all over
the place, but the people have to embrace it. And we have found that there is a growing, I would
say, contingent of people on the island that want economic opportunity. And, particularly, I
think we're seeing it in a younger demographic, that they want that. And they want to possibly
return to Molokai and have opportunities. So I believe that the ecotourism is a very good
opportunity possibly. Because again, tourism, they wanna keep it manageable, they wanna keep
it small. We talked to many, many people who really would like to see the Molokai Lodge open
up again. Some sort of enhanced visitor, you know, experience, but just in a small way. Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I realize that. And our community have come up with many
strategic -MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --plans about what you're talking about. But I guess I'm, you
know, when you say, Office of Economic Development, what are you...what do you see
strategically that your Department would implement or come up with some definite plan? With
all this input from the community and, you know, have you identified what are some of our
barriers that we have on island and how we will overcome those barriers? And I ask these
questions because of your presence on the island. And you've gone there supposingly to have
given workshops. Also wanna know how many grants have come through. And how do the
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businesses come into, actually, come into your Department to boost some of their needs like
you're saying?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So I can appreciate you talking with everyone. We, you know, I
think for now it's where do you come from, from your Department, to come up with something
strategically and, you know, how have your Department or your presence there identify how
we're gonna overcome some of the barriers?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well one of them that is a first for our Department is, we have set aside a portion
of funds this year that we're calling, small business revitalization grants. This grant right now is
in the process of being executed. The funds aren't available yet, but it is in process. It's being
signed by all the people that have to sign it. The fiscal agent is Lokahi Pacific. There are funds
set aside for Molokai, for Hana, and for Lanai. And this fund is specifically to get money in the
hands of small businesses who want to expand, who want to do a project, who want to do
anything that will enhance their business and they do not have the funds. It is not an outright
grant, it's a 60-40 match. We will be giving 60 percent, the business has to come up with
40 percent. We want them to have some skin in the game, we want them to make sure that it's
something that they really need. So that is going to be rolled out very shortly, as soon as that
grant is executed. And we're looking forward to seeing those businesses in Molokai applying for
it, and we will be putting out some press on that. So that's one thing. The other thing,
Councilwoman, when we had a meeting that you attending with all of the canoe clubs, it became
very evident that one of the...a huge economic boost or potential boost to Molokai is all of the
canoe races that enter and exit from the waters of Molokai. The concern from the people in that
meeting was that they come in, they go out, and they don't leave very much there, you know, in
the community. And, as an offshoot of that meeting that happened, I guess it was about a month
ago, we are going to be looking at ways in which, number one, that they can promote people
staying longer on Molokai and having events surrounding those canoe races, so that there's more
things to do. Also, creating potentially a place in the park where you could maybe bus those
canoe people to a park where the whole community is there and, you know, they're putting up
their tables and their tents and they're selling their crafts and their food and all of that. And to
have a more of an interaction. And those were ideas that came out of that meeting, and I think
that they were extremely valid ideas. And we have taken that group and we have the list of
everybody that was in the room that day, and that is definitely something that we warma pursue
this next year to see how we can capitalize on the canoe races that are already...they're already
coming to Molokai. It's not something we have to create, we have to find a way for more
economic impact, you know, to happen for the community
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So listening to you explain that and I'm facilitating and
coordinating a community meeting, because there are some other barriers. So, with you saying
that, I can count on your Department to assist us?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Absolutely.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And just kinda riding on some of the discussion,
Mr. Couch had in regards to.. .you had some discussion about coffee and pine. You know, I
didn't realize that the County had assisted Kaanapali Coffee Estates in their endeavors. 'Cause
when I spoke to Kimo Falconer, he was just headed over to Korea and said he was sold...I mean
I had no...I wasn't told. Were we involved, County, to foster that connection? Because that's
not what I understood through him.
MS. RASMUSSEN: All I know is that.. .1 don't know about his trip to Korea. All I know is that a
coffee buyer was on this island from Korea about, I wanna say, maybe 45 days ago. And they
had.. .and he was taken to Kimo's farm.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MS. RASMUSSEN: That's...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What I'm talking to...I talked to Kimo way back before Christmas
time.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, you know, I'm just wondering why we, the County, are
assisting, it seems to me, a very successful company on its own, number one. And then as in
pineapple, you know, I recall Maui Land and Pine had cancelled a contract with the military to
support all military for pineapple. You know, so I know we're trying to...Haliimaile Pine is
doing an awesome job doing this flash-frozen whatever, but I believe there was a contract out
to.. .and that sounds pretty huge to, you know, give pineapple to all military. So that'd be
something if it's still, they're interested, and maybe that can help propagate and bring it back. I,
you know, that was just something that I've heard in the past and why people are sort of
perturbed that we have no pine like we did. And, you know, you mentioned that 1,000 or more
acres for coffee. Is there any...Maui County Farm Bureau or what have you, you know,
Mr. Yamamura, anybody in your ag section, looking to purchase anything, especially in West
Maui. You know, everybody talks about Kula Ag, we really feel ignored and...in West Maui. I
know a lot of private landowners and things, but I believe if we could start some kinda
discussion and negotiations due to the lack of long-term leases and outpricing of these lease
agreements and what have you, people are just, you know, they're dead from the get go. So I
would like to see us drive economy this way, and ag, cattle, ranching, what have you. We got
lots of land out there fallow, and we got lots of water. So the issues are not the same as in
Upcountry. So I wanna know how it is that you're addressing that.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Well in our.. .one of our goals in our agriculture program that you'll see is to go
out and identify possible parcels that could be purchased for ag parks, and that includes West
Maui. And we have.. .our Agricultural Specialist has been out there and he has been looking
And, again, it's finding land that, you know, could be, you know, potentially for sale and, of
course, most of it does have the water with it. And then, of course, it's building up the soil to
be... 'cause a lot of it is pineapple land, so building up the soil for it to be the proper pH for all,
you know, a new crop to be raised. And so our goal this year was to just merely identify those
parcels, and then we will present a report about where those parcels are potentially. And then it
would be up to, of course, the Administration to make a decision and it's something if they want
to purchase that and for ag in perpetuity. Because that would be... the purpose of it is you would
purchase it for an ag park and it would be in ag forever, and that would be a, you know, that
would be ideal, 'cause then you could give long-term leases.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And quickly, Chair, if you don't mind a follow-up? There's
actually 185 acres in perpetuity specifically for what you're saying; of course, private landowner
what have you. But if you're not aware, I can definitely talk to Mr. Yamamura and yourself to
perhaps we can look at this parcel.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Is that that ag park that they just opened up?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Oh, okay. 'Cause there is a new...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We would like to create it as an ag park.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But I can.. .we can talk later. Thank you, Chair, for the
opportunity.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you, Ms. Rasmussen.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I'd like to thank Ms. Rasmussen for being here
this morning.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Initially I'm looking at Goal No. 1, at the number of newly
established industries within a fiscal year. I know Councilman Couch did bring that up, but you
have it listed as one. What is that industry that you anticipate introducing?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Are you looking at 2013, are you looking at...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes. You have one for 2013 -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --and then one for 2014. This is Page 395. I wanna actually know
what that industry would be -MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --that's being introduced.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. That...well, you know, I think that in...when we're trying to set these goals
for the future, 'cause we set them a year in advance, we're not exactly sure. We're hoping that
we can identify something like that. And I think that I've already given you several examples.
Another one that is on the horizon is, of course, our solar telescope that is on its very last hurdles.
As you know, this last week, the Big Island received the final approval for its 30-meter
telescope. And so we're very hopeful that Maui's solar telescope will come to the same
conclusion. And that will create over 100 positions in the high-tech field, which will be
extremely exciting. And we've been tracking that, of course, since we've been in office. So
that's something very exciting.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Well I guess what my point is, is that you've mentioned earlier in
your testimony... or in the conversations that there are many other industries that you have
possibility in introducing, but you have listed as a goal only one.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So I'm just curious as in terms of your expectation or your setting of
your goals of only introducing one, but you cannot name that specific one.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well I mean I think I just named...I talked about the olive industry, I talked about
a new flash-frozen pineapple, I talked about, you know, tech and the ATST. There are numerous
other small businesses that have come up. I mean to.. .and then of course let's, you know, don't
forget our film industry. We do now have a film studio on Maui which we did not have last year.
We have the largest film studio in the State of Hawaii. And now we have something that we can
promote here. So where we did have a film industry of sorts, because people would come here
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and film for their locations on Maui. Now they can actually do production work inside the
studio. So we do have.. .if you wanna name that. And we didn't, of course, know that was -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --going to happen a year ago.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Well, yeah, I mean I get it.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I understand that you have multiple goals or industries.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But in terms of what you've written down here as part of your, I
would hold you to this standard, this goal of one. Why not increase it to four or five so that we
actually know that you are... should be anticipating?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well keep in mind the...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Is this like.., seems to be a little bit of low expectation on yourself.
MS. RASMUSSEN: The goals set.. .the success measurement says specifically, to be established. So,
you know, that is a very tall order. You know, the first...the goals says, assist and advocate, but
the actual success measurement is how many actually got established. So when I said, one, I was
confident that we could say, we actually have established one. But, of course, we have many,
many other industries that we're working with and advocating for. So does that help answer?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, that clarifies.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So number...I have an additional question. That would be on
Page 396, that would be Goal No. 3, the implementation and execution of solutions that are
unique. You named three. What are those three unique solutions that you anticipate solving -MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --and what are the three issues that you are solving?
MS. RASMUSSEN: And... okay. And, again, these are projected into the future. But let me give you
an example. Actually, this is something that we do constantly. And probably if I was to
interview all of our specialists who are sitting here today, they could come up with probably far
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more than three. But unique solutions would be, you know, just exactly what I was speaking
with Councilman Crivello about where you have a community coming together and saying, we
have these eight canoe races, and we don't feel like we have any economic impact on our island
even though all these people come in to our island. So a unique solution is going to be when we
can put together this plan with the community on how they're going to have events that surround
these races so that they can entice people to come in and stay longer and to actually participate
within their community and create some economic impact. So those are the kinds of things it's
convening people and working with them to solve problems. And that's one of the biggest
things that we do, I would say, in our Department is we are always looking at how to solve
problems. You know, like we work with Lahaina and their street closures. And we work with
Kihei Friday Town Party and work with their committee's leadership, you know, issues. And,
you know, so we are constantly looking for unique solutions. Makawao, we are looking for a
place to put public restrooms, because that is one of the biggest blocks that they have to having a
real vibrant, you know, tourism there. Because there's very few places to.. .the tours are having
a hard time coming in because they have no public restrooms. So it's, you know, simple things
like this that...but they're big hurdles, because where do you put, you know, where do you put a
public restroom? Paia has the same issue. So and you're looking at unique solutions, those are
the kinds of things that we're working on constantly.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So you have three that you.. .that's your goal, to solve three of those.
And they're not...and when you...my understanding of unique would be specifically identifying
what that issue is now and being able to solve those. It doesn't.. .1 know my impression right
now is that it...are there three out there that you can specifically give me, on the floor, that you
uniquely can solve? I mean you've listed three, and I'd like to hear those three. That's a simple
question and -MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay, I...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --I'd like to know the answer.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. Well I thought I gave you some examples of that. But, you know, I will be
happy to defer to any of my specialists and we can discuss that, you know, and get back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, 'cause off the top of my head right at this moment, I can't come up with
other examples right now. But it is something that is ongoing in our Department, we work on it
all the time. I'm sure within the energy arena, our Energy Commissioner could probably point to
a whole bunch of unique solutions that they've had to develop with their very aggressive energy
program.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So just as a comment. Maybe you should increase your expectation
of the goal, maybe ten, fifteen. It sounds as though that you have a lot of issues that can be
uniquely solved.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. And that may be true. And, again, it's actually having them solved. You
know, one was to identify, but also then it's to actually implement it. So, you know, when we're
trying to put measures together, as you know, it's a difficult thing. It's a difficult thing when you
try to put numbers to something that you do on a daily basis.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Just a quick comment, Chair. I just...the reason why I'm kind of
stressing on or pointing out some of these numbers is that I look at these measures and goals as a
roadmap, something that the Department is giving to the Council and saying, look, we're gonna
work on these things, we anticipate that we're gonna get these things done that is listed here in
the goals and expectations. And so when I look at this, I wanna know what exactly these things
are. When they're saying, three or four, I'd like to know. Or are these just random numbers that
the other departments are putting down? And that's just my point. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Well she mentioned that she would forward the information to you, and I
think
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. And I just wanted to explain why I'm kind of focusing on
those numbers.
CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: No, that's what these sessions are for.
MS. RASMUSSEN: That's right, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well... after that. Do you want me to start or should I just...
MS. RASMUSSEN: Bring it on, bring it on.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I'm not coming in from that perspective, you know. I wanted
to say that from my viewpoint, energy has, you know, you've been really tremendously effective
in our energy policies -MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --in this County. And we've been recognized statewide; if you
watch the commercials, you'll see. So that's good news. The film industry, you know, again, I
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have really no challenges in what you have been able to achieve to this point and a lot more can
be done. I think where I would want to focus was the overall aspect of our working relationship
with our ag community. Looking at, first of all, the ag festival that just was held couple weeks
back right here in Waikapu. I thought, overall, I saw so many variable types and differences in
our ag community that over the years has just continuously grown. Those tents are filling up.
You almost got no room to add anything more.
MS. RASMUSSEN: It's true.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In fact, going have to get bigger tents in the very near future.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Which is great because you had everything from guy who's
making drinks out of grass--and then, you know, that's Mr. Mina--and I tried it. Never hurt me,
I'm still walking -MS. RASMUSSEN: Good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know. I know some of the other guys didn't, but I chanced
it. And Vince is a very persuasive type person, you know, he won't let you get by him. But, no,
you know, pineapple, everything was there. You know, the Cattlemen, you know, the history,
and everything. What I'm saying is, what I would like to see more done is, the public
partnerships which you guys have been good at.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I need I think more work. We got a lot of people on this Council
that know answers to questions. I don't have answers other than wanting to see you guys
continue and working hard. There are people out there that want to, but it's coffee and other
crops want to grow. Leases are a big part of it, and that water and leases are the two biggest
things that hold people back from starting any kind of ag business, two largest.
MS. RASMUSSEN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right? Nothing else. All the rest is bull cocky if you want me to
be honest with you. That's the issue. And that's what we need to address, Chair. It's those two
issues: leases and water.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We address that, everything else will come. You know the old
saying, build and they will come. We can build more parks. And that's another area that we
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haven't really touched. The athletic opportunities, this island. People wanna come here, but we
just don't have the facilities.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're addressing it. I mean, you know, in Mr. Guzman's
Committee you see that right now. But I'm saying the two issues is leases and water.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And once we're able to solve that...or at least get, what I call, a
very strong position, I mean that is a lot of people that will come in willing to farm. There will
be a lot of people, both domestic and foreign, that would love to come here to produce, to buy, to
be a part of. That's real simple. All the other stuff you can talk which way and what, what, and
all that. Right now, the two issues is leases and water. And, that, I'd like to see more focus on.
Because between the two, all the others will be able to...energy and all the rest will come with
those two components. Because ag still is, I believe, our future on this County. I still believe ag,
and not in a big manner, in a big farm, but more of the small sustainable farms, I think will be a
real big part of this County.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. And we're actually blessed to have both. We have large agriculture, we
have small agriculture. We have corporate agriculture, we have biotech agriculture, and we have
small farms, and we have small truck farms, and tree crops, and, you know, olive and so forth.
And now we're looking to find out how we can make hay, so to speak, out of this pesky axis deer
that we have. And possible harvesting and creating a meat market, you know, which is through
this study that we funded, we're hoping that, Councilman Guzman, that will lead to another
industry, you know, that we can put in the check box. So I will totally agree with you,
Councilman Victorino, and I, for that reason, would say that when you're looking at raising
water rates, that is something that you really need to consider the effect on the farms on Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Absolutely. And that's why this was to lead us to.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But it's not a discussion I'm gonna take up here.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right. And I will be happy to provide more testimony on that when that subject
comes up after the budget hearings, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello followed by Ms. Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I'm trying to understand the film industry here
on Maui. And, you know, I can imagine it's something very positive. But you mentioned about
the new film studio. From my understanding, that's a private studio that went through it without
County funding. But I think Councilman Couch walked him through with the permit process as
a counselor. So that's what it sort of said in the news release. So what you mentioned, the
studio, so what role did you have?
MS. RASMUSSEN: You know, this was private investors, private money. Our office did not get
involved into the process until after they actually had secured their lease. Because it was unclear
whether they would be able to secure their lease, and they did. And, at that point, our Film
Commissioner assisted in connecting him, the owner...or
. owners, with the person who had the
grip and lighting equipment. And a company based in Honolulu and also the Mainland that
already had grip and lighting equipment in the state. And so that, rather than them having to
invest in all of that equipment, it's already here. So that was a huge partnership. And our Film
Commissioner orchestrated that and, as well, another partner that came to the table with the
transportation equipment. And so now you have three entities that have joined together to
basically have everything that a production would need on the island. And then the film studio
held a film job fair about a month ago, and we were at the job fair for the sole purpose of being
able to add more people to our database on filrnmaui corn, which is a resource directory that we
created this last...over the course of this last year for all of those who work in film industry.
And these are actual professionals that have professional credits to their name, and they can say
that they have worked in the film industry. When we started, prior to that job fair, we had about
30 people signed up on our filmmaui.com website. And I believe, today, it's--over 100?--120.
So from that job fair, which brought everybody out, we were able to add 70, 80, 90 names to our
resource directory, which is a huge benefit to anybody wanting to film here. Because now they
can go to filmmaui.com and they can see all of the people that are here, and they don't have to
bring them in from the outside. And that was the whole purpose of creating that resource
directory. Did I answer your question?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: We're gonna take a quick break. But remember, Members, we wanna be out of here
by 11:30 at the latest. So we'll be.. .we'll take a five-minute break. Be back.. .actually, let's
make it four. Be back here at 10:40. . . . (gavel). . .

RECESS:

10:37 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:42 a.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . Okay, Members, the Budget and Finance Committee will come back to
order. And before I go to Ms. Baisa, Mr. Couch just had one quick comment to make.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I wanted to correct a comment that was
made by another Member. I did not help anybody with permits through...process the film
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studio. And there was a correction in the next day in the paper talking about the Planning
Committee did add film studios as a permitted use in Light Industrial, so that's the extent of the
help that was given to that industry. Thanks.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I wanna get my licks in here, too. It's
been a wonderful conversation, very heartfelt conversation and a very important one. Because if
we are going to get better and bigger and take care of everything we need to, economic
development is where it's at. We just have to grow our businesses and then we'll grow jobs and
then we'll grow everything. So to me, Ms. Rasmussen, you have one of the most important
departments in our government. Because it's with your support that, you know, things will
happen. But I did wanna comment on a couple of things that were mentioned. One was the idea
of an ag park. You know, that's a romantic idea and it sounds wonderful, but I've been involved
in the administration of the ag park and it's not an easy solution. It is very, very difficult,
because of the nature of the people that get in it; nature of the leases; the nature of ag itself; and
farmers not necessarily being businessmen, but wanting to grow things It's difficult. So, you
know, we need to really carefully how we go when we create ag parks. I think that ag parks have
to have some kind of administration built in, in order for them to be very, very successful. And
that's from my experience with being on the board of the Kula Ag Park. The other thing is, I
think we have a little bit of semantic issues here. We're talking about industries, and yet I know
that there is a tremendous amount of new businesses created on Maui every year having been
involved very much in the MEO microloan program. We're not talking about one or two
businesses, we're talking about hundreds of businesses and hundreds of jobs. So while we may
not be creating new industries, we certainly are creating a lot of new businesses and helping a lot
of people get jobs. And so I don't want us to feel too downhearted about, well we can't come up
with a new industry. It's difficult to find a new industry. I've been involved a little bit, lately, in
the behind the scenes work at the Legislature with their film industry and the credits that we're
trying to get, and it's not easy 'cause it's very competitive. Other islands want that business, too.
And we're Maui, but so does Oahu want it and so does everybody else want it. And so it's, you
know, nothing is as simple as it seems. But I do think that we have to support the Economic
Development division. We have to give you the tools to do what you have to do, and we have to
create businesses. 'Cause as long as we don't create businesses, we create no new jobs, and
we're gonna be stuck where we're at. Thank you.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama followed by Ms. Cochran.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Gee, I just enjoyed what Ms. Baisa said. But I'll add to that and which is
part of your 397, Goal 5, No. 2. I would just ask you to consider that because it's the way it is,
politically, in this state and in this County. There's a lot of eyes on this County, too, from Oahu.
And they paying attention and looking at the type of messages we're saying and we're sending,
but we're actually showing. And I can tell you this, during this session, we've had concerns
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brought up to me regarding production credit, film credit of Maui's concern or importance; but
they're watching us and they're going, I'm getting interesting signals out of your County. You
guys want this credit, but you've put up a film studio. You guys want this, yet you guys do that.
And so I think part of it needs to be part of a well thought out strategy, whether it be from the
Mayor himself or people who say they represent the County gotta know exactly who they
representing and what they're saying.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Could I respond to that for a moment?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. Thank you for that question, because the comment that you made was, you
folks put up a film studio, we did not. That was done completely by a private entity.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That I understand, Ms. Rasmussen.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. I just wanna make that clear. And we are completely in favor of those
production tax credits. We're in favor of them increasing. That has never changed. The
infrastructure tax credit bill is still moving. We have not changed our position on that. But,
again, private businesses have the right to do whatever they have to do to be competitive as well.
And so please don't confuse.. .our Administration is solid, don't confuse anything coming from,
you know, the private sector that might contradict that. Because we are in favor of those bills
going through.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't make the decisions on those legislation so -MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the problem is not with me, it's those 76 decision makers on Oahu -MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --is the concern for me, not the nine of us here. But I wanna bring up
another one under Goal 1, No. 4. I noticed, you know, you folks would like to increase the
number of sister cities relationships every year. While that's commendable, I find that to be low
priority. I think you need for us to consider what are we doing with our existing relationships,
and are they still worthy for us to have? And if they aren't, let's utilize it and, you know, do a
good reciprocity. If they're gonna come here and get some business for us, then we should do
our part and see what is our role to assist them with their economic development.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I completely agree with that. I do not think just collecting sister cities to have a
check mark on your box is the way to go. We put that on there because we have an unfinished
relationship that was established with Seo-gu, South Korea. And they have made overtures to us
that they want to complete that. So we wanted to put that in our goals, because that's something
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that we think is very strategic. Because it further expands our role in South Korea and our
visibility in South Korea. So we think that is strategic. And, in the meantime, we have had
another city from Japan that has approached the County. The sister cities committee accepted
the recommendation. We will be bringing that before the Council. And that will be completely
at your discretion. But they did come to Maui, they sought us out, they've come here I guess a
couple times and they've sent multiple letters and they really want to execute this relationship.
So that will be coming later.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's good news. But within this area, since.. .highlight a specific
component of the international relations for our County. Wouldn't we be interested and then,
because of the business component jobs, look at how the Feds are allowing us to consider
different ways of approaching a foreign-trade zone and the economics out of that to get away
from the duties and assist our local businesses or the businesses of those foreign sister
relationships to have a location in Maui to get the benefit of that?
MS. RASMUSSEN: That is a.. .actually, that's a really good.. .that is a very good idea. Now, we've
been approaching it from the point of view that the free trade agreement that was recently passed
with Korea...South Korea--make that clear these days--that focusing on those products that are
going to be allowed--I don't have the document in front of me right now--but there's quite a list
of products that will be allowed into South Korea with no duty. And so that, of course, is really
low-hanging fruit because that's already in place. And I don't know what the process of creating
a foreign-trade zone is. I know that there is one in Honolulu. So that's certainly something that
we could look at. But I would assume that it includes the Federal government. And getting in...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well the key is, you know, the new twist is that it doesn't have to be just on
one contiguous piece of property.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh. Oh, interesting.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You can have different components of a trade zone. Honolulu is expanding
to make use of this investment in businesses to get that duty-free protection -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --of a trade zone, and it's maybe something we might wanna consider.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I think that's awesome. You know, just like we have a hub zone on Maui. And
our Tech Park has benefitted from that greatly because being in the hub zone, they've been able
to get advantages when they're looking at federal contracts. Which is why we have that JITC
contract here doing the medical records, $300 million investment, you know, that has come to
Maui. And a lot of tech companies that have opened up. So those zones can be very, you know,
as we know about our enterprise zone, too. We have a new...Ocean Vodka opening up a new
plant. We have Maui Brews [sic] opening up a new brewery. And they are in the enterprise
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zone. So these do have big advantages, you know, if we take advantage. And let our businesses
know about them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I would say some good ideas can be recycled, because we were
freezing pineapple sticks in the '60s.
MS. RASMUSSEN: There you go.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Wasn't flash frozen, but we froze pineapple in the '60s, so it's good to know
it's still good fifty years later, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I'm not sure if my line of questioning ought
to go to Film Commissioner, Harry Donenfeld or...
MS. RASMUSSEN: I'd be happy to bring our Film Commissioner.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or I can just, I mean, just for the sake of time, Chair, perhaps.. .1
mean since you are the, you know, Director of Department.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, without objection, we'll bring Mr. Donenfeld down.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. DONENFELD: Good afternoon, Council.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hi.
CHAIR WHITE: If you could just introduce yourself for the record?
MR. DONENFELD: Morning. I'm Harry Donenfeld, the Maui Film Commissioner.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hi, aloha.
MR. DONENFELD: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, yeah, it's quite interesting the discussion in regards to the film
industry. And so just directly to yourself, I just wanted to get sort of a summary of things you've
accomplished, you know, since coming on board with us, the County.
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MR. DONENFELD: Sure. We have increased the number of productions in the County by about
20 percent overall. We've done some.. .I've done extensive work with NBC. We just
unfortunately lost it, but we're up for having The Today Show come and do a live broadcast from
Wailea. But, in the end, broadcast has to be from 1:00 to 4:00 in the morning, because it goes
live to New York City, so it's not very bright lit. So unfortunately we did lose that to Waikiki
But these are the kind of things that we keep trying to bring in as well. With regards to the film
studio, Mr. Buenger came to the Film Office with a sound stage and an idea for bringing film
projects to Maui and to fill his sound stage. And it was with the help of the Film Office that we
introduced him to all of the necessary components to create a film studio instead of just a single
sound stage. And so we went from having a small sound stage being brought to the County to
now being home to the largest film studio in the State of Hawaii by six or seven thousand square
feet. And it was those partnerships that allowed him to create that larger studio. I worked and
introduced him directly to the unions, so that we could create a scenario with the unions that
would allow Maui to build up its infrastructure, allow these jobs to start coming to our residents.
In the past, the unions work on seniority. So if a position isn't finable on this island, they
immediately go to seniority, take them from one of the neighboring islands. The deal with the
unions now is that if there is a position and a trainee available working within the union, they
won't use seniority to take that training off, they will allow the producer, if they wish to, to allow
to keep that trainee here. That, in essence, builds Maui's workforce up. As a matter of fact,
IATSE, Local 665 was here the beginning of April, did their first general membership drive ever,
as far as I know on this island. And that was because now Maui Film Studios is up and running
and at the request of the Film Office, but we...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Can I--sorry, Chair--can I interject? I mean for the sake of
time, I have some other more -MR. DONENFELD: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --important line of questioning here besides unions. So I just need
to find out whether you were... 'cause I know Ms. Rasmussen said, the studio's private -MR. DONENFELD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --don't get us confused with County versus private.
MR. DONENFELD: Correct.
CO'UNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But you are County, and it sound... and so I need to know, did
you...were you given a directive to be involved with this private entity; thereby, actually being
County, involved in assisting this film studio? Do you know what I'm asking? Yes, and so
who...
MR. DONENFELD: Yes, I mean that is my --
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. But who...
MR. DONENFELD: --that is the definition of my job.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And who gave you the directive, Ms. Rasmussen, Mayor? Is there
a specific person who said, you go assist this, get it up and going or whatever? Was there
someone in particular do you recall or you made the call or how's that work?
MS. RASMUSSEN: You know, this is.. .I'm trying to understand if your line of questioning is that it's
inappropriate for us to work with a private business, that absolutely not the case.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No. That's not the.. .no.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Because we work with private businesses all day long, every day. And it is our job
to promote and build the film industry on Maui. And anybody who wants to bring a project to
this island, we're going to work with them.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MS. RASMUSSEN: We work with all of them.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And, Chair? And so, yes, correct. But after hearing
Mr. Hokama and the mixed feelings, the calls I've been hearing through State Leg and all the tax
credit bills: SB750, HB726, what have you, you know, there's sort of a mixed message coming
from this County to the State. And that is what I'm trying to decipher here, you know. There's
kind of mixed messages going on. So I'm not saying, don't get involved with public, private
partnership type things. I'm just saying, you know, I'm...the Administration seemed to have
been going on one path, and then all of a sudden, here we're popping up this studio. And, yes,
County is somehow involved. So, anyways, that is kinda my line of questioning, trying to get
towards what is going on here. And I mean if you don't have an answer, that's my concern.
And that is what I'm trying to get to the bottom of, to figure out...
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran, if you could clarify with a question, I think that might help them
answer.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: My initial question, who gave the directive to get involved with this
private entity when it sorta undermines what Administration seems to be trying to work on at the
State level up at the Leg?
MR. DONENFELD: My directive is to work with all members of Maui's community in the film
industry. I don't have the freedom to decide who I can and can't. When Mr. Buenger came to
me and asked for my assistance, it is my job as the Film Commissioner to assist him in the things
that he needs to have done. If anybody else wants to come and ask for my assistance and my
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help, I offer it to them as well. I don't cherry pick or discriminate between any local citizen and
somebody else.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair, to follow up on that then? About a year ago, we
created a fund. And I believe, at the time, a person by the name of Ryan Kavanaugh was
proposing to shoot a film here.
MR. DONENFELD: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What happened with that? Did you support it? That was something
that I believe past Members were quite supportive, including Mayor, at the time. And we created
an entire funding to be established to address this. So if I can get comments in regards to that?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, if I might? The fimd wasn't established, necessarily, for one industry or one
project. The fund was established to create economic development and investment in new
industry in our community. The Department is still working on, and I think it was at the
Economic Development Committee, they discussed some of the rules and procedures for use of
the funds, but they haven't confirmed that yet. And the Council put in a restriction in the
creation of the Code and use of the fund that it would require that we create administrative rules
before we can use the fund. And so they're still in that process before they can use the fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. But if I recall, that was the main intention at the time. But,
Chair, I.. .well anyways.
CHAIR WHITE: It was one of the main focuses.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: And we also required that the Administration come back to the Council for funding
approval. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I find it a little distressing that we're
having issues with, you know, private businesses and us helping private businesses go through,
try and get things going. That's the whole idea with the Department of Economic Development,
is to help private businesses. If it just so happens that another initiative that's going on
somewhere else in a department, not necessarily conflicts, but doesn't support what this issue is,
that's not, you know, the County's doing. That's a situation where somebody is a private
individual came to the County and said, hey, you know, what can you do to help? And they did
their job. And then, yes, it kinda went against the infrastructure tax credit request, but so what?
You know, it's somebody doing business. You know, if they don't get the tax credit, that just
happens to be a by-product. So, you know, so what? I'm giving kudos to the Department for
helping getting that thing going without County funds, without State funds. Great job. My gosh,
that's exactly what we're trying to do here.
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MR. DONENFELD: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I don't get the whole upset about helping out an industry without using
County funds, it just boggles my mind. That being said, back to sister city. Just real quick. I
noticed on the website, it's not up to date, both websites. We have our County website and your
sister city website, not up to date. Four of us, three of us in this room I think, went to Badoc and
signed a sister-city agreement and it came back here and the Mayor and the Council ratified it
and the Mayor ratified it--and that was two years ago?--year and a half ago, and it's still not on
the website. So obviously, as Mr. Hokama said, that seems to be a low priority. What are your
priorities with that?
MS. RASMUSSEN: You know, I definitely apologize for that. I wasn't aware that that wasn't on there.
So now that I am, I assure you it'll be fixed. We had been working extensively, this year, on
filmmaui com, and that kind of took our focus for our web work. But, clearly, there's no excuse
to not have up-to-date information on the website, so thank you for bringing that to our attention.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Would you allow me to ask a question through Ms. Rasmussen for
Mr. McLeod regarding a energy audit fund request, Chairman?
CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. My understanding is, there's a $300,000 request for an energy audit.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Did you want an explanation -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --of what that is? Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, please.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, so I'd to ask Commissioner McLeod to come down. But let me just give
you a quick answer, and then I'll let him dive in a little bit. This was.. .you may recollect,
because you have been on the Council a long time, there was a previous $500,000 that was
given, a grant essentially to MECO to provide low-income households solar water heaters, okay.
And that was getting to that, you know, let's try to move along our energy efficiency and so forth
program. Now that money has been fmally expended. It took them several years to do that, but
that money is expended. And so we're looking at the next phase of what that might be. And so
what we developed was a two-fold fund. First, $200,000 of it would be designated toward
low-income--is it low-income homes?--low-income homes for the purpose of doing
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energy-efficiency projects. So it would be like lighting, other kinds of efficiencies, maybe they
have a ancient, you know, refrigerator. And the other 100,000 will be for businesses who have
been denied due to the grid lock on the grid, access to, you know, possibly solar, for them to
have an audit that will show them how they can be more efficient. And how this dovetails in
with the college is that they are creating a pipeline for these jobs, for these energy-efficiency
auditors, and they're coming through a program. The bottleneck is, they're not...the public
doesn't really know that they're available, and that they're not getting the jobs that they need.
So we want to create this program so that we have the data collected on how much a homeowner
can save, how much a business can save, if they implement these efficiency -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --you know, projects. So, with that, I'll let Doug explain if.. .yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Doug, you know, in your response, could you also tell us why the
PUC, or the utility, shouldn't be doing this?
MR. McLEOD: So short.. .1 guess I'll try to give a reasonably short answer. The history of this does
come out of the Maui Solar Roofs Initiative. And that was the earlier project that provided
revolving loan fund at 0 percent for solar hot water heaters.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. McLEOD: What we started trying to do is to work with utility and say, could this program be
expanded and either to cover solar PV or to cover efficiency? For a number of reasons, they feel
like they cannot participate in this program as the utility because the Public Utilities Commission
has established a separate Hawaii Energy Program. So what we've done is gone back and said,
okay, if the utility can't participate, what should we do with this program? It is intended not to
be a revolving program quite the same way. It's intended to be a demonstration here of whether
these types of audits pay for themselves. So the solar industry has really gotten the word out
well that solar pays in essence. And what we've tried to do is say, go back, let's look at what
else can be done. And the Hawaii Energy Program has some gaps; they'll be a partner in this as
well. But we work with MEO, we worked with the college. And there was some work done,
recently, on Oahu. And what they've found was that in 50 percent of the homes that they went
and looked at, these solar hot water heater timers were just set wrong. And if you've had
personal experience with these things, you understand, you know, that when the power goes off,
there's no automatic reset. There're things like that that are happening to people. And so what
we'd like to do is to establish this program so that we can go in and create a track record here.
And by the time this is done, we will have some data and we will say that we went through, say,
50 homes. And in 20 of them, or in 40 of them, you know, that there were these improvements
that pay for themselves. But, right now, that business case really can't be made. We've got the
people coming out of the college, we've got the solar industry encouraging people on the solar
side. But as far as the economic development and why we're doing this, it is an attempt to really
prove or disprove the anecdotal information, which is that this will pay for itself, that there are a
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lot of people that still have old-fashioned lights, they still have hot water heaters that aren't set,
that kind of info. So I said it'd be short, and it wasn't as short an answer as I promised, sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, you know, there's many components that's moving along, you know.
The Contractors Association is moving along with their new product, events coming up and
highlighting some of the things you just shared about new efficiencies in energy use. And
there's no Department of Energy funds for this type of considerations, Doug?
MR. McLEOD: Right now, we're not aware of any. There was some money during the stimulus
program, but we're not aware of any that could be used for this right now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe this is a good use of those taxes we're gonna get from
energy-producing, private property then, Chairman. Okay. I still don't know why the utility
shouldn't be participating.
MR. McLEOD: Again, if we had our choice, we would be using that existing Solar Roofs Initiative,
leverage that infrastructure, not create something new. But they've told us, they don't feel they
can and...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you know the impact? 'Cause, you know, part of our, I guess, ordinance
is any...all new construction has to have some kind of, you know, solar considerations.
MR. McLEOD: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So we talking about just old, existing homes then basically, Doug?
MR. McLEOD: Yeah, there is a requirement now that all new homes, residential homes, either have
solar hot water heating or file for an exemption. And what we're talking about here is really
focusing on the existing stock. And because so many people have had solar hot water heaters for
so long, we're really reaching the point where things just need to be replaced. You know, we're
not gonna go in and put a new solar hot water heater on a new home in this program, but what
we might do is go in and see if we can find maybe a kind of thermostat or timer that would set
differently for the weekend and save some people some money that way. Or just find a way that
to reset and show them how to reset the teeth on their timer next time their power goes out.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I know 100,000 was for the business sector.
MR. McLEOD: Yes, for small business here on Maui...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If somebody told you or asked you, has the County done its own audit and
we were up to speed, what would your response be?
MR. McLEOD: I'd say that they're about 15 facilities or so where the answer would probably be, yes,
that we have both done an audit and we've implemented efficiency. There are a number of other
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facilities...and, frankly, what we were trying to do here is limit it to really smaller kind of
operations and small business. But, yeah, there are certainly places where you could spend
money intelligently on efficiency within the County, too. For us, this particular budget item is
more about trying to show if the economics works, if these audits pay for themselves as
advertised. So that's the slightly different focus I think of this budget item.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So I won't see this request next year then?
MR. McLEOD: I think if you approve it, you'll hopefully will have some discussion about what the
results were. And we can feedback to you and say, the average person had a three-year payback
or four-year payback or whatever we're hoping to find on that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. McLeod.
CHAIR WHITE: Just a follow-up. The 300,000, is that going to be spent on providing funds to the
college for tuition offsets or is it gonna be paid directly to people who are out in the field or both,
and what do you see as a split and add in whatever else would cover?
MR. McLEOD: It would not be paying for tuition or for the students directly. What it would do is it
would provide for a standard cost audit that would be performed by people that have been
certified through this college program. So there would also be a follow-on role documenting. So
we talked about how we try and show after the fact how cost effective this work was. And the
college would be the third party acting to document that, you know, and have some quality
control. So there would a role, but the actual funding would be going, the vast majority, directly
to the certified person providing the audit.
CHAIR WHITE: And what do you foresee the average cost? If they were to go into a home, is it
gonna...are we gonna pay them a hundred bucks, two hundred bucks, three?
MR. McLEOD: I'd add another zero, sir. I think more like $2,000 to $3,000 is really what we're
looking at for... and if we said, $2,000, that's probably a good kind of a number. It would be
relatively detailed. We would be going in and taking wattage readings of devices, they'd be
going in and having to check the water heaters and check lighting. And that number may be a
little less; but if you asked for an estimate upfront, I really would.. .would be in the thousands not
the hundreds to make sure that it's a good, quality product.
CHAIR WHITE: Per home?
MR. McLEOD: Yes. So we...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the cost is for us to do this is more than the savings?
CHAIR WHITE: I guess it depends on how liberally somebody's using their electricity.
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MR. McLEOD: What I didn't say, to be clear, is that when we're coming up with these numbers, we're
assuming some of the actual material, too. So, for example, if we're using a $2,000 estimate,
we're actually saying, you know, that you'd come with some energy-efficiency light bulbs and
have an ability to change out based on what you find. So, yes, I mean for this to work, if the
price ends up at say, 2,000, you would need a pretty high energy savings to make it work. If the
price ends up closer to 12 or 15 hundred, that makes the payback a lot easier. And I'm just
trying to give you a conservative number, because I have learned from Council that it is better
not to come back later and ask for more money.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You are learning very...
MS. RASMUSSEN: It's also, though, for the college to then collate the data, you know, so that's a very
important component of it. Because if we don't have the data afterward... so, you know, that's
gonna be part of that, too, so...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Wouldn't we get the data from the utility on the differences from the
previous historical numbers and the new numbers? It ain't that hard for me to figure this one
out.
MR. McLEOD: If it's someone that only uses electricity and their grid tie, then yes, the utility
information, afterwards, will. But if it's someone who also has gas service, for example, and
utility, propane, or, you know, has any piece that's off-grid, all these add, you know, complexity
and you'd have to look at it. But, again, for some.. .if it's only electricity saved and they're only
grid tie, then, yes, the MECO bill itself would prove the savings eventually, yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Could you provide us with a breakout of what portion of the 300,000 is going to the
collation of the data, how much is going to inspections, and how much is going to any kind of
tuition offsets?
MR. McLEOD: Yes, Chair, I think we can.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a follow-up to Mr. Hokama's question. Is he saying that $2,000,
we're gonna spend $2,000 per household to save a couple hundred?
MR. McLEOD: No. I mean if that's what we did, we would show that this is not cost effective. What
I'm saying is that if you ask, is that 200,000 let's say, you know, going to be divided among
thousands and thousands of homes or hundreds of homes, you know, that right now we're
working off of the cost estimate that assumes it will be over $1,000 to go in, do the work,
document, and that, you know, puts in a little money. These are guesses at this point on, you
know, light bulbs and timers and stuff that could be easily replaced. At this point, you know, is
it gonna be cost effective? I hope so. I mean I think that if you could save someone $50 a
month, you know, it's $600 a year and you spent let's say, you know, $1,200 to do so, that to me,
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frankly, probably does look like it would be cost effective. But if you spent 2,000 and you save
someone, you know, $20 a month, then I think it's gonna be very difficult. And, again, for us,
the focus of this project is really, let's find out. Because we're all having this discussion saying,
hey, I wonder what the numbers would be, I wonder it'd work? And we found it just as
frustrating because there is no clear information out there for industry. We've gone and just tried
to say, well let's just look at the research, we don't need to do this. But, in fact, we have not
been able to find good sources of info, that would tell people that you can expect this type of a
payback on this type of a project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's kind of--Mr. Chair, if I may follow up on that?--that's kind of
interesting. 'Cause I get that little Hawaii Energy thing that says I'm spending way over what
my
MR. McLEOD: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --neighbor does for whatever reason, but they can't...I mean isn't that
good enough data or...
MR. McLEOD: Honestly, I would say, no. The Hawaii Energy info, right now, first, doesn't
distinguish between the people that have solar and those that don't. So, for example, my own
home. You know, one month, I was getting those reminders saying, boy, I was really doing
poorly, and then the next month I was suddenly, you know, an energy leader in my
neighborhood. Had nothing to do with conservation in that case, it had to do with the solar
coming on. So the Hawaii Energy data that they get just directly from the utility isn't able to
distinguish, generally in those mailers, between what is energy efficiency and what is not right
now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, Chair, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran, and then that will be the last questions before we take off.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And if...I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: And if you have further questions, please send them to the Committee in writing and
we'll be happy to pass them on. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, for the opportunity.
CHAIR WHITE: Proceed.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm looking at the International Economic Development Program.
And it says, you do have promotion of foreign film production. In this particular portion, you're
asking 250,000, so I'm just wondering why it isn't in the Film Industry Promotion section for
120,000?
MS. RASMUSSEN: This is specifically...this fund is specifically to further the Mayor's agenda in
Asia. And it is very necessary for us to have some resources to have a contractor that is working
in Asia and following up on all of the different.. .it will not be an OED employee. Now, clearly,
this person will be working with the Film Commissioner as to those kinds of things that will be,
you know, will work here. I mean, clearly, they'll have conversations, but this is on the ground,
in Asia, working with all kinds of economic development opportunities for our County as a
whole. And that's what the fund is set up for.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not just...
MS. RASMUSSEN: We envision.. .I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So just, not just film.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Oh, no, not...if you look the description, it covers lots and lots of different areas of
economic development.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And this is a foreign contractor, you said, so this is not a
County employee?
MS. RASMUSSEN: It is not a County employee, but we will be using Maui Visitor Bureau as our
partner in this. They'll be the fiscal agent and they will be the one contracting this work out.
And they will be also working very closely with our office as well on all of these initiatives. So
they already have contractors that they work with in the tourism arena in Asia, and this will be
more focused on economic development in Asia.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so you and I traveled to Asia together with the sister-city
program. And every discussion with any mayor or whoever we met was all about, let's build
relationships to better, you know -MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --build the economy with each other. So sister city, you're looking
to bump that up eight grand to twenty. And then part of this 250 is exactly what I just described,
also?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Absolutely. The sister city, bumping from eight to twenty, that is mostly spent on
when they come here and that we need to provide ground transportation, ceremonies, protocol,
and all the things that go into taking care of them. We have not...we have had—and I could get
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you the number, I don't have it right now--we have had a lot of visits from sister cities over this
last year. And each one of them, of course, you need to treat these people properly. I mean they
are our sister cities, you need to take care of them. We haven't had enough finding to do that,
and that's why we bumped that up. That has little to do with this economic development
initiative, this international initiative. This is actually going for those kinds of projects and
impact that we wanna bring to our County from Asia. And, primarily, we're focusing on South
Korea, Taiwan, and China.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm seeing we had three visits from sister city. And last question,
Chair, if you don't mind? In regards to this International Economic Development Program, it
says, assist in building infrastructure on Maui to prepare for the growing Asian market.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Exactly, what is that infrastructure and what is that Asian market?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. So what that means is, the growing Asian market of visitors coming in and
also business investors coming in. We need to prepare our businesses for better multilingual,
you know, services. They need to have multilingual people on their staff. So they need to
understand the Asian cultures. I'm sure you all lived here when Japan was a huge part of our
visitor industry. And everyone had a Japanese-speaking person, practically, on their staff, in
their hotels. The big businesses did, the activities did. When we lost that tourism, we really got
away from this multilingual, you know, approach and we need to get it back. And we
particularly need to get it back for Korea. Because we see they are.. .they have a much stronger
economy, right now, than Japan. They have a great deal of interest for farming and coming.
And the business opportunities are tremendous, and we're really.. .we really need to push
forward. Because if you feel that Maui is going to only survive forever on a domestic market,
maybe augmented a little by Canada, I feel that's a very precarious situation. I think we need to
focus our efforts more into Asia. We need to have both. I don't want to belittle the domestic
market, of course; we need to have both. Right now, we don't have both. We need to have both.
We need to prepare ourselves to be a little bit more cushioned from recession, possible domestic
recession, certainly European recession, even Japan's recession that they're in right now. We
really need to protect ourselves in that, and I believe the place to be is South Korea, Taiwan, and
China.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So in a nutshell, infrastructure means you want interpreters, you
want bilingual-speaking.. .to create a better, conducive atmosphere for our foreigners to come;
and then as in Asian market, you're strictly focusing on tourism. Is that what you...
MS. RASMUSSEN: You are correct with the infrastructure being focused on the language
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: You are not correct on the tourism being the focus of the international contractor.
It is just the opposite. Maui Visitor Bureau already has contractors in Asia working on tourism
side. This is economic development side.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And I would want it in detail, but you mentioned all about
tourism.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that's why I'm just gathering tourism right now.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran, we will be -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Anyways.
CHAIR WHITE: --revisiting these when we go through Grants.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So I've allowed the questions, because it's similar. But we will be revisiting these
when we go through all the Grants. So appreciate the questions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: GB, RC, and MV)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR WHITE: And with that, Members, we're gonna head to the airport and we
will see you
all, or all that are going to Molokai, at 6 o'clock at Mitchell Pauole Center. We're adjourned.
.(gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 11:29 a.m.
APPROVED:

MIKE WHITE, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
Transcribed by: Raynette Yap
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